
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Bendy White 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Gregg Hart 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Jason Dominguez 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 

 
MARCH 8, 2016 

AGENDA 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the special meeting of February 17, 2016. 
  

2. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With Allied 
Voyage, LLC, Doing Business As Ocean Aire Marine Electronics - Located 
At 125 Harbor Way, #7 (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Five-Year Lease Agreement with One Five-Year Option with Allied Voyage, LLC, 
Doing Business As Ocean Aire, at an Average Initial Base Rent of $1,200 Per 
Month, for the 339 Square-Foot Office Space Located at 125 Harbor Way, Suite 
#7, Effective April 15, 2016. 
  

3. Subject:  Agreement To Use Recycled Water For Irrigation At 706 East 
Haley (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve an Agreement to Use Recycled Water 
between the City of Santa Barbara and Santa Barbara Land Co., LLC, a 
California Limited Liability Corporation, for purchase, use, and delivery of the 
City's recycled water to 706 East Haley. 
  



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  Five-Year Lease Agreement With The Blue Water Hunter Dive 
Shop Located At 117-D Harbor Way (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a five-year lease agreement with 
Andrew M. Taylor, a Sole Proprietor, doing business as The Blue Water Hunter, 
at an initial base rent of $2,430.50 per month, for the 878 square-foot lease 
space located at 117-D Harbor Way. 
  

5. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Americans With Disabilities Act 
Ramp At Oak Park Pool Project (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council award a contract to Arroyo Seco Construction in 
their low bid amount of $65,400 for construction of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA) Ramp at Oak Park Pool Project, Bid No. 3813, and authorize the 
Parks and Recreation Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures 
up to $6,540 for any unanticipated work. 
  

6. Subject:  Extension Of The Professional Services Agreement With Garden 
State Fireworks For July Fourth And Parade Of Lights Fireworks Displays 
(570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Waterfront Director to exercise the 
renewal terms on the Professional Services Agreement with Garden State 
Fireworks for the 2016-2019 July Fourth and Parade of Lights Fireworks 
Displays. 
  

7. Subject:  Preferential Parking Along The South Side Of Cabrillo Boulevard 
For Land And Sea Tours (Land Shark) (550.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve an application for preferential parking 
by Land and Sea Tours until such time that Council terminates the privilege, or 
the applicant no longer meets the requirements of Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
Section 10.44.250, or Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 10.44.250 is 
updated. 
  



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

8. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Quarantina Street Permeable 
Pavers Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Brough Construction, Inc., waiving minor 

irregularities, in their low bid amount of $1,491,943 for construction of the 
Low Impact Development Demonstration Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys 
Project - Phase II, Bid No. 3783; and authorize the Public Works Director 
to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $149,194 to cover 
any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for extra 
work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual 
quantities measured for payment; 

B. Approve a transfer of reserves in the amount of $461,473 from the Creeks 
Operating Fund to the Creeks Capital Fund; and 

C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $461,473 in the 
Creeks Capital Fund to cover the cost of the City's matching requirement 
for the Proposition 84 Grant that will be used to fund the Project. 

 
 
NOTICES 

9. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 3, 2016, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ATTORNEY 

10. Subject:  Reintroduction Of Noise Ordinance Amendments (630.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Chapter 9.16 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code in its Entirety Pertaining to 
Noise. 
  



3/8/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D) 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject:  Policy Direction For The Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Study 
(540.11) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation and provide direction on 
assumptions for the Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Study, specifically for the 
planned reserves management during continued drought conditions. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING RULES APPLY TO THE FOLLOWING AGENDA ITEM 

12. Subject:  Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval 
Of A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street  (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Deny the appeal of Eric and Elenor Wernicke of the Architectural Board of 

Review's decision to grant Project Design Approval for the proposed new 
seven-unit apartment building; and  

B. Direct Staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the 
outcome of the appeal. 

 
 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (IF NECESSARY) 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

13. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Anticipated Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to decide whether to 
authorize the initiation of litigation (one potential case) pursuant to Government 
Code sections 54956.9(d)(4) and take appropriate action as needed. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None 
  

ADJOURNMENT 



2/17/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
MAR 08 2016 #1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
February 17, 2016 

CHASE PALM PARK RECREATION CENTER, 236 E. CABRILLO BLVD. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 9:07 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Jason Dominguez, Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, 
Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Pete Dal Bello, Susan Lafond. 
 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mayor Schneider noted the passing of George Gaynes and former Santa Barbara City 
Councilmember Rusty Fairly. 
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, February 11, 2016, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, 
and on the Internet. 
 



2/17/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

WORK SESSIONS 
 
Subject:  Fiscal Year 2017 Special Budget Work Session (230.05) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a special work session on the Fiscal Year 2017 
financial plan. 
 
Documents: 

- February 17, 2016, report from the Finance Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  City Administrator Paul Casey, Finance Director Robert Samario, City 
Attorney Ariel Calonne, Public Works Director Rebecca Bjork, Environmental 
Services Manager Matthew Fore, Waterfront Director Scott Riedman, Airport 
Operations Manager Tracy Lincoln. 

- Members of the Public:  Susan Lafond, Bonnie Raisin. 
 
Discussion: 

Finance Director Samario presented information on the following principal 
components of the City’s budget:  1) status of the Enterprise Funds; 2) status of 
the General Fund, including a review of key tax revenues (sales, transient 
occupancy, and property taxes), expenditures by department and category, 
expectations for retirement costs, and a multi-year forecast; and 3) a detailed 
explanation of the City’s capital program.  City Administrator Casey reviewed a 
list of major work efforts currently being undertaken by Staff.  All 
Councilmembers asked questions and provided input for the upcoming budget 
process. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 11:02 a.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



Agenda Item No.  2 
File Code No.  330.04 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With Allied 

Voyage, LLC, Doing Business As Ocean Aire Marine Electronics - 
Located At 125 Harbor Way, #7 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Five-Year Lease Agreement with 
One Five-Year Option with Allied Voyage, LLC, Doing Business As Ocean Aire, at an 
Average Initial Base Rent of $1,200 Per Month, for the 339 Square-Foot Office Space 
Located at 125 Harbor Way, Suite #7, Effective April 15, 2016. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Jon Payne has operated Ocean Aire since July of 2015 when he assumed ownership of 
the business. The previous owner had owned and operated Ocean Aire for 29 years. 
The 339 square feet of commercial space is located at 125 Harbor Way Suite #7 
(Attachment 1). Since assuming ownership of Ocean Aire, Mr. Payne has significantly 
upgraded the lease space to include new flooring, new paint, new office furniture and a 
state-of-the-art product display area. These improvements have significantly improved 
Ocean Aire’s presence in the Waterfront community. 
 
The business terms of the proposed lease are as follows: 
 
• Term: Five-year initial term with one, five-year option. 
• Base Rent: An average of $1,200 per month. 
• Annual Rent Adjustment: Cost of Living increases based on the Consumer 

Price Index (CPI). 
• Use: limited to sales and service of marine motors, electronics, rigging services, 

and hardware. 
 
Ocean Aire is considered a tenant in good standing by the Department as they have no 
outstanding default notices on file and have been prompt with rent payments. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With Allied Voyage, LLC, Doing 
Business As Ocean Aire Marine Electronics - Located At 125 Harbor Way, #7 
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 

 

The Harbor Commission recommended City Council approval of the proposed lease 
agreement with Ocean Aire at its meeting on January 14, 2016. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Site Plan 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian J. Bosse, Waterfront Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 





ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING A FIVE-YEAR LEASE 
AGREEMENT WITH ONE FIVE-YEAR OPTION WITH 
ALLIED VOYAGE, LLC, DOING BUSINESS AS OCEAN 
AIRE, AT AN AVERAGE INITIAL BASE RENT OF $1,200 
PER MONTH, FOR THE 339 SQUARE-FOOT OFFICE 
SPACE LOCATED AT 125 HARBOR WAY, SUITE #7, 
EFFECTIVE APRIL 15, 2016 
 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Lease With Allied Voyage, LLC, Doing Business As Ocean Aire, Effective April 15, 
2016, is hereby approved. 
 



Agenda Item No.  3 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Agreement To Use Recycled Water For Irrigation At 706 East Haley 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council approve an Agreement to Use Recycled Water between the City of Santa 
Barbara and Santa Barbara Land Co LLC, a California Limited Liability Corporation, for 
purchase, use, and delivery of the City’s recycled water to 706 East Haley. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Pursuant to the City’s Waste Discharge Permit, the Central Coast Regional Water 
Quality Control Board requires that the City of Santa Barbara have a Recycled Water 
User Agreement with each site that uses the City’s recycled water. Santa Barbara Land 
Co has requested to enter into a Recycled Water User Agreement with the City for a 
term of four years to be able to use recycled water for irrigation of landscaping at their 
site, located at 706-708 East Haley Street.  
 
The development is a remodel of an old printing press building into a mixed-use 
commercial and residential building. The remodeled site will contain 1,300 square feet 
of commercial space, five residential dwelling units, and 1,950 square feet of 
landscaping. 
 
If approved by Council, the Agreement will be recorded in the Official Records of the 
County of Santa Barbara.  Staff has reviewed and recommends that Council approve 
the User Agreement. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
All sites using recycled water for irrigation and other approved uses offset the need for 
potable water.  Recycled water serves an important role in the diversity of the City’s 
water supplies and is used at over 50 sites throughout the City.  The annual demand for 
recycled water can be as high as 1,100 acre feet - approximately one million gallons per 
day. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Agreement To Use Recycled Water For Irrigation At 706 East Haley 
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 

PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/MW/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  4 
File Code No.  330.04 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Services Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Five-Year Lease Agreement With The Blue Water Hunter Dive 

Shop Located At 117-D Harbor Way 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council approve a five-year lease agreement with Andrew M. Taylor, a Sole 
Proprietor, doing business as The Blue Water Hunter, at an initial base rent of 
$2,430.50 per month, for the 878 square-foot lease space located at 117-D Harbor 
Way. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Mr. Andy Taylor has operated The Blue Water Hunter since late-2000 when he 
assumed ownership of the business through a Request for Proposals process. The 878 
square feet of commercial space is located at 117-D Harbor Way (site map attached). 
Over the past 18 months, Mr. Taylor has significantly upgraded the lease space to 
include new and expanded offerings including a large variety of wetsuits, face masks, 
fins, and air tanks as well as comprehensive repair services. Mr. Taylor brings over 30 
years of spearfishing experience to Blue Water Hunter and can assist the beginner 
through the expert ranks with local knowledge, trip ideas, charters and everything else 
one needs to have a great spearfishing and diving experience. These improvements 
and offerings have significantly improved The Blue Water Hunter’s presence in the 
Waterfront community. 
 
The business terms of the proposed lease are as follows: 
 
• Term: Five-year term. 
• Base Rent: Initial rate of $2,430.50 per month. 
• Annual Rent Adjustment: Cost of Living increases based on the Consumer 

Price Index (CPI). 
• Percentage Rent: Variable depending on type of sales activity. 
 
The Blue Water Hunter is considered a tenant in good standing by the Department as it 
has no outstanding default notices on file and has been prompt with rent payments. 



Council Agenda Report 
Five-Year Lease Agreement With The Blue Water Hunter Dive Shop Located At 117-D 
Harbor Way 
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 

 

The Harbor Commission recommended City Council approval of the proposed lease 
agreement with The Blue Water Hunter at its meeting on February 18, 2016. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Site Plan 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian J. Bosse, Waterfront Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Department 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Inside A
rea 

O
utside A

re 
T

otal A
rea 

JIA
R

BO
R

 
V

IC
IN

ITY
 

.. 

F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
 

1 17 D
 H

arbor W
ay 

H
arbor 
_

_
t
 

H
arbor 

W
ay 

P
m

Jact N
orlh 

-
 

0 
20 

40 

S
cale (F

eet) 

R
EV

ISIO
N

S 
L

ease A
rea 

E
x

h
ib

it 
A

 
-
 

- 
1/lx/8on 

1- 
117 o a

v
b
m
 w

y
 

u
-
 1110-a6 

-. 
R

W
e

I
w

-
 

W
aterfro

n
t 

D
ep

artm
en

t 
1
 of 

1 



Agenda Item No.  5 
 

File Code No.  570.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  March 8, 2016 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of The Americans With Disabilities Act 

Ramp At Oak Park Pool Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council award a contract to Arroyo Seco Construction in their low bid amount of 
$65,400 for construction of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Ramp at Oak Park 
Pool Project, Bid No. 3813, and authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to execute 
the contract and approve expenditures up to $6,540 for any unanticipated work. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Description 
 
The ADA Ramp at Oak Park Pool Project (Project) includes the construction of an 
accessible ramp into the existing wading pool, modifications to plumbing and drainage, 
installation of new concrete pool deck, and installation of an additional emergency exit 
gate. The Project will be completed before June 1, allowing the pool to open for summer 
use. 
 
Contract Bids 
 
Three bids were received for the subject work, as follows: 
 
BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
1. Arroyo Seco Construction  $65,400 

 
2. Newton Construction  $89,000 

 
3. Tomar Construction  $92,570 

 
The low bid of $65,400 submitted by Arroyo Seco Construction, is an acceptable bid 
that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications. Staff 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Americans With Disabilities Act Ramp At Oak Park Pool 
Project  
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 

 

recommends that the bid total of $65,400 be accepted by Council. The change order 
funding recommendation of $6,540, or 10 percent, is to cover any unanticipated work 
not in the original scope.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funding for the project is included in the Pool ADA Improvement and Park Infrastructure 
and Safety Program accounts in the FY 2017 Parks and Recreation Department Capital 
Fund.  The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 

 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 

 
 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Arroyo Seco Construction $65,400 $6,540 $71,940 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $71,940 
 
The following summarizes all design, construction, and other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
Design (by staff) $7,000 

Consultant Engineering Services $6,000 

Permit and Special Supplies $2,200 

Subtotal $15,200 

Construction Contract  $65,400 

Construction Change Order Allowance $6,540 

Subtotal $71,940 
Construction Material Testing Services (by Contract) $1,500 

Construction Management/Inspection (by City staff) $7,300 

Subtotal $8,800 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $95,940 
 
PREPARED BY: Keven Strasburg, Park Project Technician 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jill E. Zachary, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No.  6 
File Code No.  570.03 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Division, Waterfront Department  
 
SUBJECT: Extension Of The Professional Services Agreement With Garden 

State Fireworks For July Fourth And Parade Of Lights Fireworks 
Displays 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council authorize the Waterfront Director to exercise the renewal terms on the 
Professional Services Agreement with Garden State Fireworks for the 2016-2019 July 
Fourth and Parade of Lights Fireworks Displays. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff issued a Request for Proposals for a fireworks company in 2014 to provide the 
fireworks displays for both the annual July 4th show and the smaller Parade of Lights 
display each December. Garden State Fireworks was the successful bidder and 
provided an excellent show at the 2015 July 4th show as well as the December 2015 
Parade of Lights. The Garden State proposal included the 2015 shows as well as 
options to extend the contract for four years, for the 2016-2019 fireworks displays. The 
contract extensions are at the City’s sole discretion, so that exercising one option does 
not commit the City to any other contract extensions. 
 
Costs for the annual July 4th and Parade of Lights shows are as follows: 
 
2016= $55,000 (same as 2015) 
2017= $57,750 (5% increase) 
2018= $57,750 (same as 2017) 
2019= $60,500 (5% increase) 
 
If the City were to exercise all four options, the total cost of the 2016-2019 July 4th and 
Parade of Lights fireworks displays would be $231,000, paid from the Waterfront 
Enterprise Fund. 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Extension Of The Professional Services Agreement With Garden State Fireworks For July 
Fourth And Parade Of Lights Fireworks Displays 
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funding for the contract in FY 2016 and 2017 is included in the Fiscal Year 2016 and 
2017 Waterfront Department Operating Budget. Approval of the Fiscal Year 2018 and 
2019 options will be contingent upon adequate funding in each year’s budget. A copy of 
the agreement is available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Cost Proposal 
 
PREPARED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 





Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  550.08 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Preferential Parking Along The South Side Of Cabrillo Boulevard 

For Land And Sea Tours (Land Shark) 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council approve an application for preferential parking by Land and Sea Tours until 
such time that Council terminates the privilege, or the applicant no longer meets the 
requirements of Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 10.44.250, or Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code Section 10.44.250 is updated. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Land and Sea Tours Application 
 
Land and Sea Tours (Land Shark) is a sightseeing bus that operates in Santa Barbara. 
The Land Shark has applied for preferential parking privileges along the south side of 
Cabrillo Boulevard, just west of Chapala Street, (Attachment 1), pursuant to Section 
10.44.250 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC). 
 
Since about 2003, the Land Shark has picked up and dropped off passengers along the 
south side of Cabrillo Boulevard, just east of State Street, in the Waterfront Shuttle bus 
stop area. This bus stop was recently closed due to construction associated with the 
Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project, and will remain closed until the project 
is complete in 2016. Once the project is complete, the Waterfront Shuttle stop will 
reopen, but will only be available for use by the Metropolitan Transit District (MTD) 
Waterfront Shuttle. Since the onset of bridge construction, the Land Shark has been 
operating under a temporary permit along the south side of Cabrillo Boulevard, just west 
of Chapala Street and is paying quarterly fees of approximately $1,300 to reserve public 
parking spaces.  The Land Shark has requested to make this space a preferential 
parking space to facilitate passenger loading and unloading. Pursuant to SBMC Section 
10.44.250, Council approval is required in order for the Land Shark to have permanent 
preferential parking in this area. The Land Shark has expressed an interest in relocating 
to the south side of Cabrillo Boulevard, between Anacapa and Garden Streets, after 



Council Agenda Report 
Preferential Parking Along The South Side Of Cabrillo Boulevard For Land And Sea 
Tours (Land Shark) 
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 

 

bridge construction is complete; however, any relocation will again require approval of 
Council and general support of affected parties. 
Existing SBMC Ordinance Regarding Preferential Parking 
 
Under SBMC Section 10.44.250, Council may grant a sightseeing bus applicant a 
preferential right to a parking space, up to 35 feet in length, on any City street. The 
applicant is required to demonstrate good and sufficient cause and operate over a 
regular and fixed route at least six days per week, and not less than 12 consecutive 
weeks at a time. The Land Shark operates daily between noon and 4:00 pm during the 
winter, and noon and 6:00 pm during the summer, over a fixed route.  Staff agrees that 
preferential parking will facilitate the loading and unloading of passengers. The 
applicant must pay a fee of five dollars and meet the City’s insurance requirements. 
 
Historical Use of Bus Stops  
 
Prior to July 2015, the SBMC permitted any vehicle defined as a bus (i.e. a vehicle 
designed for carrying 15 or more passengers) to stop at and use a bus stop, not just 
buses operated by the MTD. This resulted in a number of sightseeing buses using bus 
stops intended for MTD; the most notable being the bus stop on eastbound Cabrillo 
Boulevard, just east of State Street, where the Land Shark and Trolley regularly picked 
up and dropped off passengers. None of the sightseeing buses that used this area had 
a Public Works Permit for use of the public right of way. The ordinance regarding bus 
stops was updated in July 2015, to clarify that bus stops are for use by MTD buses only. 
The Santa Barbara Trolley Company subsequently requested, and was granted, 
preferential parking next to the visitor center in March 2015. 
 
Staff recommends that the Land Shark be granted a preferential parking space, 35 feet 
in length, along the south side of Cabrillo Boulevard, just west of Chapala Street, until 
the applicant either no longer meets the requirements of SBMC 10.44.250, or SBMC 
10.44.250 is updated. Council can terminate the privilege of preferential parking at any 
time, per SBMC 10.44.270. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map of West Cabrillo Boulevard 
 2. Application Letter and Insurance  
 
PREPARED BY: Derrick Bailey, Supervising Transportation Engineer/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 1



Cz
5

to SE1
A
0
C

VR 805.683.7800 PAX 805.683.7773

Cr- ‘RBRA

January 29,16

Dear Mayor helene Schn&der and members o[Ci Council.

4 2016

e iiNO

For the last 12 years, the Land Shark has conducted daiJy city and bar-be’- tours
departing from State Street at Stearns Wharf.

As you may know, clue to the ongoing Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement
Project, both the Land Shark and the Trolley Companys loading and L’nloching
location was needed during the 2+ year consfrucUon process.

For the past year, the Land Shark has been loading and unloading passengers from
the West Beach area, at 99 West Cabril]o Blvd., the south side of Cabrillo Blvd., just
west of Chapala street, across from the Veterans Memorial Building.

Due to the [act. that the bridge replacement project is expected to continue for at
least another year before its coniptetion, and tire previous loading and unloading
location that we used will ‘lot become available unifi then, I kindly request
continued preferential loading unloading and temporary parking at the current
West Beach location of 99 West Cabrillo Blvd.

We currently operate seven days a week weather peimitting, from loan, to 6pm.

Respectfully,

Andre Manoux

Land And Sea LLC

2]6A8OLEDA ROAD
SAN IA BARB ARk CA 93110

Land and Sea Tours

ATTACHMENT 2

1



Name of Business

Land and Sea LLC
OBA: Land and Sea Tours

Contact Person

Andre Manoux

Emergency Contact

Andre Manoux

Mairing Address

216 Arboleda Road
Santa Barbara, Ca 93110

General Description of Business

Round trip sightseeing city and harbor tours

Preferred Localio — rdcae preferred boci< lace or specific address
(ao;tants re auvisec t”at the resented area ‘nay not exceed 35

Turn out on the southside of Cabrilb Blvd. from streelpole #2175 to
Chapala Street curt, extension. (Across from 102 and 112W. Cabrillo
Blvd.)

Preferred days and hours of excius.ve use (applicants are advised That
exclusive use s mited to hours of actual s.ght-seeing operation)

Everyday. lOam to 6pm

Actual Hojrs of Sight Seeino Qoe’ation identify any weeks or mo’ins rot
fl scheo ed operation during lie year)

Everyday, lOam to 6pm

2



ms D000MEIff KS A TRUE DOCkkHEK wATThM*K ANn lSFSL FIFRS DISOERNLSLE FNOM sdtF/ sIs•

NON TRAnSFERABLE

BUSINESS ADDRESS 216 ARSOLEDA RD

0V)NER LAND AND SEA LLC

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

BUINSS NAME LAND AND SEA TOURS SANTA BARBARA
A1Th
UAkIEG 21 S ARBOLEDA RD
sOOnFSS SANrA BARBARA. CA 4111O-1704

ThIS CER11RCA7E GZ NOT coNsTrru TE FNrRFMENT TJF rHE NF5. 00€ [I GRSNr P€MIS0N ro COFtIJOT HUINLSd AT AI

I NIS U OUTEfl IS StTtKr!ON OrEc to [O fltTCI FIT 1PCTCE! r FdtR 5 ON CER U UOH

BUSINCSS TAX RECEPT

LiTTTEe N. S2473
Pd- 04/08)2015

POST TN CONSPICUOUS PLROE

DATE ISSLJD
04/08/2015

BUSINESS LICFNSF CERTFICATE

TYPE OF BUSINESS

Travel or to, Sess

UCENSE NUMSR

52473
STATE LICENSE

KEEP FOR YOUR RECORDS

EKPI RAT’ ON

03/31/2016
1016
TOTAL

2660O
$266.00

GIl-v OF
SANTA BARBARA

3



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACTPRODUCER NAME:
FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A :
INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDL SUBRINSR POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITSPOLICY NUMBERLTR (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)INSD WVD
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $

DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $JECT

$OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMITAUTOMOBILE LIABILITY $(Ea accident)
BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS AUTOS
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $HIRED AUTOS (Per accident)AUTOS

$

UMBRELLA LIAB EACH OCCURRENCE $OCCUR
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

$DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-WORKERS COMPENSATION
STATUTE ERAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
N / AOFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2014/01)

LANDS-1 OP ID: OA

10/09/2015

Orjhen Atanesyan
TIB Transportation Ins Brokers
425 West Broadway, Suite 400
Glendale, CA 91204
Josef Ortiz

818-246-2800 818-246-4690

CA State Compensation Ins Fund

Land and Sea LLC
216 Arboleda Rd
Santa Barbara, CA 93110

X
A 914044015 08/22/2015 08/22/2016 1,000,000Y

1,000,000
1,000,000

Officer Exclusion Applies - Dany Lavine-Manoux, Andre Manoux       

SANTA80

City Of Santa Barbara
735 Anacapa St
Santa Barbara, CA 93101

4



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

JOINT COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 Creeks Division, Parks and Recreation Department  
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of The Quarantina Street Permeable 

Pavers Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Brough Construction, Inc., waiving minor irregularities, in 

their low bid amount of $1,491,943 for construction of the Low Impact 
Development Demonstration Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project – Phase II, 
Bid No. 3783; and authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract 
and approve expenditures up to $149,194 to cover any cost increases that may 
result from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; 

B. Approve a transfer of reserves in the amount of $461,473 from the Creeks 
Operating Fund to the Creeks Capital Fund; and 

C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $461,473 in the Creeks 
Capital Fund to cover the cost of the City’s matching requirement for the 
Proposition 84 Grant that will be used to fund the Project. 
 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Description 
 
The Low Impact Development Demonstration Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project – 
Phase II (Project) consists of installing over 45,000 square feet of permeable concrete 
pavers in the sidewalks and roadway of Quarantina Street, from Canon Perdido Street 
to Ortega Street. The Project is designed to capture and treat the volume of storm water 
generated from a 1-inch, 24-hour storm event. Phase I of the Project was constructed in 
the summer of 2015, under a separate contract, and consisted of installing over 23,000 
square feet of permeable concrete pavers in the sidewalks around Alice Keck Park 
Memorial Gardens and the Parks and Recreation Department’s service road at Plaza de 
Vera Cruz. The Project will be used as an example of a Best Management Practice that 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Quarantina Street Permeable Pavers Project 
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 

meets the City’s Storm Water Management Program requirements, and can be installed 
almost anywhere there is existing hardscape. 
 
Contract Bids 
 
A total of six (6) bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Brough Construction Inc. 

Arroyo Grande, CA 
$1,491,943.00 

2. Shaw Contracting  
Carpinteria, CA  

$1,508,620.00 

3. R. Burke Construction  
San Luis Obispo, CA 

$1,550,365.00 
 

4. Whitaker Construction Group  
Paso Robles, CA 

$1,660,000.00 
 

5. Red Hawk Services 
Perris, CA  

$1,728,593.75 
 

6. Granite Construction 
Santa Barbara, CA 

$1,968,017.00 

 
The low bid of $1,491,943.00, submitted by Brough Construction, Inc., is an acceptable 
bid that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $149,194, or ten percent, is typical for 
this type of work and size of project.   
 
Community Outreach 
 
Public Works and Creeks Division staff have notified the property owners and residents 
near the Project locations of the upcoming construction via mailers and in-person 
meetings. The contractor will be responsible for the final notice via door hangers, 72 
hours prior to construction. The Project will also be described in a press release and on 
the City’s website. During construction, temporary construction signs detailing the 
Project’s design and benefits will be posted at the sites. Upon Project completion, a 
television segment will be prepared and aired on City TV, and permanent interpretive 
signs will be posted at each site. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The City was awarded Proposition 84 Storm Water Grant Program funding in the 
amount of $2,307,010 for the Project costs of both phases. There was a minimum 20 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Quarantina Street Permeable Pavers Project 
March 8, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 

 

percent local match required as part of this grant application. On November 4, 2014, 
Council adopted Ordinance No. 5674, approving and ratifying the Proposition 84 grant 
agreement.  
 
Based on the total project cost of $1,186,790 for design and construction of Phase I, the 
remaining $1,535,551 of grant funds and $461,473 of matching funds from Creeks 
Operating Fund reserves will be used to fund Phase II of the Project.  
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Contractor $1,491,943 $149,194 $1,641,137 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $1,641,137 
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

 PROP 84 CITY SHARE TOTAL 
City Design Cost $0 $58,324 $58,324 
City Survey Costs $0 $6,000 $6,000 

Design Subtotal $0 $64,324 $64,324 
Construction Contract  $1,491,943 $0 $1,491,943 
Construction Change Order 
Allowance 

$11,705 $137,489 $149,194 

Subtotal $1,503,648
 

$137,489
 

$1,641,137 

Construction Management/Inspection 
(by City Staff) $0 

$235,000 $235,000 

Material Testing $31,903 $0 $31,903 
Labor Compliance $0 $24,660 $24,660 

Subtotal $31,903 $259,660 $291,563 
Construction Subtotal $1,535,551 $397,149 $1,932,700 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $1,535,551 $461,473 $1,997,024 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Quarantina Street Permeable Pavers Project 
March 8, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 

 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
Storm water and urban runoff from impervious surfaces are a major source of surface 
water quality degradation. Infiltrating polluted runoff provides passive treatment at the 
source, which enhances watersheds and beaches, reduces damaging peak storm water 
flows, recharges groundwater, and requires no power consumption for operation. 
 
 
PREPARED BY:  John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/LY/sk 
 Cameron Benson, Creek Restoration/Water Quality 

Improvement Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director  
 Jill Zachary, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  10 
File Code No.  630.09 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Reintroduction Of Noise Ordinance Amendments 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 9.16 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code in its Entirety Pertaining to Noise. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On February 9, 2016, Council introduced the above-referenced Noise Ordinance with a 
change reducing the penalty for a criminal violation from a misdemeanor to an 
infraction.  After the meeting, upon further review, we discovered a second section 
addressing misdemeanor penalties which the Council did not address. 
 
The second section relates to enhanced penalties for continuing violations.  On 
February 9, 2016, it read as follows: 
 

D. CONTINUED VIOLATIONS. Once a violation of any provision of 
this Chapter has been verified by a zoning enforcement or police 
department staff, the owner(s) of the property where the violation occurred 
may be subject to administrative action or MISDEMEANOR citation for 
allowing a subsequent violation of this Chapter to occur on the property 
within nine (9) months after the date of a previous violation, provided the 
property owner has received notification from the City of the previous 
violation and at least fourteen (14) days have passed since the date the 
notification was mailed to the property owner(s). 

 
Because Council did not specifically address this continuing violation language, we 
have set this matter as a reintroduction of the ordinance rather than a second reading. 
 
We have assumed that Council intended to change this section to an infraction penalty 
as well, and have revised the attached ordinance to read as follows: 



Council Agenda Report 
Reintroduction Of Noise Ordinance Amendments 
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 

 

D. CONTINUED VIOLATIONS. Once a violation of any 
provision of this Chapter has been verified by a zoning enforcement 
or police department staff, the owner(s) of the property where the 
violation occurred may be subject to administrative action or 
INFRACTION citation for allowing a subsequent violation of this 
Chapter to occur on the property within nine (9) months after the 
date of a previous violation, provided the property owner has 
received notification from the City of the previous violation and at 
least fourteen (14) days have passed since the date the notification 
was mailed to the property owner(s). 

 
If we have not made the right assumption about the Council’s intention, Council may 
change the continuing violation penalty back to a misdemeanor during this 
reintroduction. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

1 
 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING CHAPTER 9.16 OF THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE IN ITS ENTIRETY 
PERTAINING TO NOISE 

 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. Findings and Intent.   It is hereby declared to be the policy of the 

City of Santa Barbara to minimize the exposure of residents to the harmful physiological 

and psychological effects of excessive noise.  It is the express intent of the City Council 

to control the level of noise in a manner which promotes commerce, the use, value and 

enjoyment of property, sleep and repose, and the quality of the environment.  The City 

Council finds that the occurrence of loud or disturbing noises in the City of Santa 

Barbara constitutes an immediate and ongoing threat to the public health, safety, and 

welfare of the residents of the City.  As a matter of legislative determination and public 

policy, the provisions, regulations and prohibitions of this ordinance are in pursuit of and 

for the purpose of securing and promoting the public health, safety, and welfare and the 

peace and quiet of the City of Santa Barbara and its residents.  Moreover, the City 

Council finds that this ordinance is in furtherance of, and consistent with, the Santa 

Barbara General Plan, including specifically Noise Policy ER31. 

 
 SECTION 2.  Chapter 9.16 of Title 9 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

2 
 

9.16.010 Generally. 

  A. CAUSING ANNOYANCE, DISCOMFORT OR DISTURBING THE PEACE 

- Excessive or Unreasonable Noise. It is shall be unlawful for any person to make, 

cause or suffer or permit to be made or caused, upon any premises owned, occupied or 

controlled by him said person in the City, any unnecessary noises or sounds which 

cause are physically annoying annoyance or discomfort to persons of ordinary 

sensitiveness sensitivity or which are so harsh or so prolonged or unnatural or unusual 

in their use, time or place as to occasion physical discomfort to the inhabitants of the 

City, or any number thereof which disturb the peace and quiet of any neighborhood. 

B. FACTORS USED IN DETERMINING WHETHER A VIOLATION HAS 

OCCURRED. The factors which shall be considered by the City in determining whether 

to issue a citation for a violation and whether a violation of this Section has occurred 

shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  

1. The volume of the noise, music, or related sound;  

2. The intensity of the noise, music, or related sound;  

3. The duration, continuousness or repetitive nature of the noise, music, or 

related sound;  

4. Whether the nature of the noise, music, or related sound is unusual for 

the area in which it occurs;  

54. Whether the origin of the noise, music, or related sound is natural or 

unnatural to the area in which it occurs;  

65. The volume and intensity of the background noise or sound, if any;  



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

3 
 

76. The proximity of the noise, music, or related sound to residential 

sleeping facilities or to overnight accommodations, such as hotels and motels;  

87. The proximity to offices, places of business or other areas where work 

is known to be carried on, of the noise, music, or related sound;  

98. The nature and zoning of the area within which the noise, music, or 

related sound emanates;  

109. The time of day or night the noise, music, or related sound occurs 

and the relationship of this time to the normal activities of the area in which it occurs and 

in relation to the other factors listed in this subsection;  

11. The duration of the noise, music, or related sound;  

102. Whether the noise, music, or related sound is recurrent, intermittent, 

or constant;  

113. Whether the noise, music, or related sound is produced by a 

commercial or a noncommercial activity;  

124. Whether the person or business responsible for the noise, music, or 

related sound has been previously recently warned that complaints have been received 

about the noise, music, or related sound and such person or business has failed to 

reduce it to an appropriate level. 

9.16.020 Noise Disturbance Prohibited. 
 

No person shall make, continue or cause to be made or continued, or permit or 

allow to be made or continued, any noise disturbance in such a manner as to be plainly 

audible by a person of ordinary sensitivity at a distance of fifty (50) feet from the noise 

source; provided, nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit any noise which 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

4 
 

does not penetrate beyond the boundaries of the noise source’s own premises or does 

not constitute an unreasonable disturbance to people lawfully on those premises. 

9.16.030 Specific Conduct Prohibited. 
 

A. The following subsections set forth specific conduct which shall be 

unlawful: 

1. Radios, Television Sets, Musical Instruments and Similar 

Devices. Operating, playing or permitting the operation or playing of any radio, 

television set, phonograph music player, drum, musical instrument, or similar device 

which produces or reproduces sound between the hours of ten (10) pP.mM. and seven 

(7) aA.M. in such a manner as to create a noise disturbance audible by a person of 

ordinary sensitivity across a residential or commercial real property line. 

2. Loudspeakers and Amplified Sound.  Using or operating for any 

purpose any loudspeaker, loudspeaker system or similar device between the hours of 

ten (10) P.M. and seven (7) A.M. ten p.m. and seven a.m. in such a manner that the 

sound creates a noise disturbance audible by a person of ordinary sensitivity across a 

residential real property line. 

3. Animals and Birds. Keeping, maintaining or possessing or 

harboring any animal or bird which frequently or for long duration, howls, barks, meows, 

squawks or makes other sounds which create a noise disturbance audible by a person 

of ordinary sensitivity across a residential or commercial real property line.  

B. EXCLUSIONS. 

1. Amplification of sound by a person as part of an event or activity 

sponsored or approved by the County of Santa Barbara on property owned by or leased 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

5 
 

to the County, provided the County has adopted or approved a sound control plan for 

the property which is applicable to the event or activity. 

2. Amplification of sound by a person as a part of an event or activity 

sponsored or approved by the County of Santa Barbara on property owned by or leased 

to the County of Santa Barbara and for which property the County has not developed a 

sound control plan. 

3. Amplification of sound by a person as part of an activity or event 

sponsored or approved by the City of Santa Barbara on property owned by or leased to 

the City of Santa Barbara. 

  4. Amplification of sound by a person as part of an activity or event 

sponsored by or approved by a nursery school or day care, elementary school, 

secondary school or college or university on property owned by or leased to the 

educational institution. 

  5. Amplification of sound by a person as part of an activity or event 

sponsored by or approved by a public entity on property owned by or leased to the 

public entity. 

9.16.015040 Construction Work at Night Prohibited. 
 
 It shall be unlawful for any person, between the hours of 8:00 p.m.P.M. of any 

day and 7:00 a.m.A.M. of the following day to erect, construct, demolish, excavate for, 

alter or repair any building or structure if the noise level created thereby is in excess of 

the ambient noise level by 5 dBA at the nearest property line of a property used for 

residential purposes unless a special permit therefor has been applied for and granted 

by the Chief of Building and Zoning Official. In granting such special permit, the Chief of 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

6 
 

Building and Zoning Official shall consider if construction noise in the vicinity of the 

proposed work site would be less objectionable at night than during daytime because of 

different population levels or different neighboring activities, if obstruction and 

interference with traffic, particularly on streets of major importance, would be less 

objectionable at night than during daytime, if the kind of work to be performed emits 

noises at such a low level as to not cause significant disturbance in the vicinity of the 

work site, if the neighborhood of the proposed work site is primarily residential in 

character wherein sleep could be disturbed, if great economic hardship would occur if 

the work were spread over a longer time, if the work will abate or prevent hazard to life 

or property, if the proposed night work is in the general public interest; and he shall 

prescribe such conditions, working times, types of construction equipment to be used, 

and permissible noise emissions, as he deems to be required in the public interest. This 

section shall not be applicable to activities of public or private utilities when restoring 

utility service following a public calamity or when doing work required to protect persons 

or property from an imminent exposure to danger. 

9.16.0250 Leaf Blowers - Restriction on Use. 
 
A. DEFINITIONS. 
 

1. LEAF BLOWER Leaf Blower.    Any device used, designed or 

operated to produce a current of air by fuel, electricity or other means to push, propel or 

blow cuttings, refuse or debris.  

2. NOISE LEVEL STANDARDS Noise Level Standards.  

Measured in accordance with those standards developed under the supervision of the 

American National Standards Institute's (ANSI) "Committee for Sound Level Labeling 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

7 
 

Standard for Hand Held and Back Pack Gasoline Engine Powered Blowers" presently 

adopted as ANSI B-175.2-1990 with the maximum noise level of 65 decibels. 

 B.  PROHIBITION IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES.  

 It is unlawful for any person to operate a leaf blower within two hundred and fifty 

feet (250') of any residential zone, as that term is defined in Title 28 of this Code, before 

9:00 a.m. A.M. or after 5:00 p.m.P.M. Monday through Saturday or at any time on 

Sundays or national holidays, provided that the City Parks and Recreation Department 

employees shall be allowed to use leaf blowers between the hours of 7:00 a.m.A.M. and 

9:00 a.m.A.M. Monday through Saturday when cleaning parking lots adjacent to the 

City's Beachfront parks. 

 C. CLEAN-UP OF DEBRIS.  

 It is unlawful for any person operating any type of leaf blower to blow cuttings, 

refuse or debris onto a neighboring property or into a street or gutter. It is also unlawful 

for any person operating any leaf blower to fail to properly dispose of accumulated 

debris, leaves, or refuse in a sealed trash or refuse container. 

 D. PHASE-OUT OF CERTAIN LEAF BLOWERS.  

  1.  Existing Leaf Blowers.  The use of leaf blowers which are not 

manufactured to meet or exceed the Noise Level Standards is prohibited in all areas of 

the City under all circumstances, after October 9, 1997.  

  2. Sale of New Leaf Blowers.  It is unlawful to sell or offer for sale 

within the City of Santa Barbara leaf blowers which are not manufactured to meet or 

exceed the Noise Level Standards of 65 decibels. 

 E. CERTIFICATION.  



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

8 
 

 Owners and operators will present equipment to the City Parks and Recreation 

Director or his designee, with an application and reasonable fee, for noise testing 

according to ANSI testing criteria in the Noise Level Standards. Leaf Blowers which 

generate 65 decibels or less according to the test will be issued a certification sticker, 

which is valid for one year following the date of testing. The use of a leaf blower, without 

a current and valid certification sticker affixed to it, within the City after July 1, 1998 is an 

infraction.  All sound level measurements described in this section shall be taken with a 

Sound Level Meter. 

 F. GUIDELINES FOR THE PROPER USE OF LEAF BLOWERS. 

 The City Parks and Recreation Director is hereby authorized and directed to 

adopt guidelines for the proper use of leaf blowers which guidelines shall promote the 

safe and efficient use of leaf blowers, while also mitigating, to the extent possible, the 

noise and nuisance effects of leaf blowers. The Finance Department is hereby directed 

to provide a copy of this ordinance and the leaf blower guidelines to each person 

obtaining a City business license for the operating of a gardening or landscaping 

maintenance service or business within the City. The operator of every business 

establishment selling leaf blowers within the City of Santa Barbara shall post in a 

conspicuous location and shall distribute to all purchasers a copy of this ordinance and 

the guidelines. 

9.16.02160  Use of Gasoline Powered Leaf Blowers Prohibited. 
 
 Measure D97, adopted November 4, 1997, provides: In order to secure and 

promote the public health, comfort, safety and welfare, and to protect the rights of its 

citizens to privacy and freedom from nuisance, it is the purpose of this ordinance to 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

9 
 

prohibit unnecessary, excessive and annoying noises at levels which are detrimental to 

the health and welfare of the community, and to minimize airborne dust and pollen.  

It shall be unlawful for any person within the City to use or operate any portable 

machine powered with a gasoline engine, or gasoline powered generator, to blow 

leaves, dirt, and other debris off sidewalks, driveways, lawns, or other surfaces. 

9.16.0250070  Regulation of Noise Affecting Parcels Zoned or Used for 
Residential Purposes. 
 
 A.  HOURS OF OPERATION. Hours of operation on property zoned for 

agricultural use and used for planting, grading, vegetation removal, harvesting, sorting, 

cleaning, packing, shipping, and pesticide application shall be limited to 7:00 A.M. to 

7:00 P.M. Monday through Saturday. Hours of operation for the above-stated activities 

shall be limited to 8:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. on Sunday and holidays. 

 B. MOTOR VEHICLE HORNS AND SIGNALING DEVICES.  The following 

acts and the causing thereof are declared to be in violation of this ordinance: 

  1. The sounding of any horn or other auditory signaling device on or in 

any motor vehicle on any public right-of-way or public space except as a warning of 

danger as provided in Section 27000 of the California Vehicle Code.   

  2. The sounding of any horn or other auditory signaling device which 

produces a sound level in excess of 60 dB(A) at a distance of 200 feet. 

  3. Exception. Emergency vehicles may be equipped with and use 

auditory signaling devices that do not comply with the requirements of this section. 

B. C.  MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT. Mechanical equipment other than vehicles 

and equipment which is operated by electricity obtained from an electricity utility 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

10 
 

company shall not be used outside before 8:00 A.M. or after 7:00 P.M. on Saturday, 

Sunday or holidays or before 7:00 A.M. or after 7:00 P.M. Monday through Friday. 

C. D.  NOISE LIMITATIONS. All mechanical equipment other than vehicles 

(including heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems) shall be insulated. Sound at 

the property line of any adjacent parcel used or zoned for residential, institutional, or 

park purposes shall not exceed sixty A-weighted decibels using the Community Noise 

Equivalent Level (60 dB(A) CNEL). All wind machines are prohibited in the City. 

9.16.030 Sonic Booms Declared Public Nuisance. 

Flights of manned and piloted aircraft over and in the vicinity of the City so as to cause 

loud, sudden and intense "sonic booms" in the City constitute a public nuisance. 

9.16.040 Creating Sonic Boom Unlawful. 

It is unlawful to pilot any aircraft over and in the vicinity of the City at supersonic speeds 

so as to cause loud, sudden and intense "sonic boom" impacts in the City. 

9.16.050080 Sound Amplification. 
 
 No person shall amplify sound using sound amplifying equipment contrary to any 

of the following:  

 A.(a) The only amplified sound permitted shall be either music or the human 

voice or both. 

 B.(b) Sound emanating from any public park or place shall not be amplified 

above the ambient noise level so as to be audible within any hospital, rest home, 

convalescent hospital, or church while services therein are being conducted.  



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

11 
 

 C.(c) The volume of amplified sound shall not exceed the noise levels set forth 

herein 60dB(A) when measured outdoors at or beyond the property line of the property 

from which the sound emanates.  

Time Period  

10 p.m. - 7 a.m.  

7 a.m. - 10 p.m.  

Maximum Noise Level  

50 dBA  

60 dBA  

 D.(d) The volume of amplified sound inside a structure shall not exceed 45dB(A) 

the noise levels set forth herein when measured inside a building used for residential 

purposes. This maximum noise level shall not apply to the dwelling unit from which the 

sound is emanating.  

Time Period  

10 p.m. - 7 a.m.  

7 a.m. - 10 p.m. 

Maximum Noise Level  

40 dBA  

45 dBA 

 E.(e) The limits set forth above shall not apply to the following:  

  1.(1) Amplification of sound by a person as part of an event or activity 

sponsored or approved by the County of Santa Barbara on property owned by or leased 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

12 
 

to the County, provided the County has adopted or approved a sound control plan for 

the property which is applicable to the event or activity. 

  2.(2) Amplification of sound by a person as a part of an event or activity 

sponsored or approved by the County of Santa Barbara on property owned by or leased 

to the County of Santa Barbara and for which property the County has not developed a 

sound control plan. 

  3.(3) Amplification of sound by a person as part of an activity or event 

sponsored or approved by the City of Santa Barbara on property owned by or leased to 

the City of Santa Barbara. 

 4.(4) Amplification of sound by a person as part of an activity or event sponsored 

by or approved by a nursery school, elementary school, secondary school or college or 

university on property owned by or leased to said educational institution. 

  5.(5) Amplification of sound by a person as part of an activity or event 

sponsored by or approved by a public entity on property owned by or leased to said 

public entity. 

9.16.060090 Definitions. 
  
 Unless the context otherwise clearly requires, technical words and phrases used 

in this chapter are defined as follows: 

 A.(A) SOUND AMPLIFYING EQUIPMENT. "Sound amplifying equipment" shall 

mean any machine or device for the amplification of the human voice, music, or any 

other sound. "Sound amplifying equipment" shall not include standard automobile radios 

when used and heard only by the occupants of the vehicle in which the automobile radio 

is installed. "Sound amplifying equipment" as used in this chapter, shall not include 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

13 
 

warning devices on authorized emergency vehicles or horns or other warning devices 

on any vehicle used only for traffic safety purposes and shall not include communication 

equipment used by public or private utilities when restoring utility service following a 

public calamity or when doing work required to protect persons or property from an 

imminent exposure to danger.  

 B.(B) AMBIENT NOISE. "Ambient noise" is the all-encompassing noise 

associated with a given environment, being usually composed of sounds from many 

sources near and far. For the purpose of this ordinance, ambient noise level is the level 

obtained when the noise level is averaged over a period of five (5) minutes without 

inclusion of noise from isolated identifiable sources, at the location and time of day near 

that at which a comparison is to be made. 

 C. NOISE DISTURBANCE.  “Noise disturbance” shall mean any sound which (a) 

endangers or injures the safety or health of human beings or animals, or (b) annoys or 

disturbs reasonable persons of normal sensitivities, or (c) endangers or injures personal 

or real property, or (d) violates the factors set forth in Section 9.16.010 of this Chapter.  

Compliance with the quantitative standards as listed in this Chapter shall constitute 

elimination of a noise disturbance. 

 D.(C) DECIBEL. "Decibel" (dB) shall mean an intensity unit which denotes the 

ratio between two (2) quantities which are proportional to power; the number of decibels 

corresponding to the ratio is ten (10) times the common logarithm of this ratio.  

 E.(D) SOUND LEVEL. "Sound level" (noise level) in decibels is the value of a 

sound measurement using the "A" weighting network of a sound level meter. Slow 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

14 
 

response of the sound level meter needle shall be used except where the sound is 

impulsive or rapidly varying in nature in which case fast response shall be used.  

 F.(E) PERSON. "Person" shall mean a person, firm, association, co-partnership, 

joint venture, corporation, or any entity, public or private in nature.  

 G.(F) SOUND LEVEL METER. "Sound level meter" shall mean an instrument 

including a microphone, an amplifier, an output meter, and frequency weighting 

networks for the measurement of sound levels which satisfies the pertinent 

requirements in American National Standards Institute's specification S1.4 1971 2014 or 

the most recent revision thereof for type S-2A general purpose sound level meters.  

 H.(G) SUPPLEMENTARY DEFINITIONS OF TECHNICAL TERMS. Definitions 

of technical terms not defined herein shall be obtained from the American National 

Standards Institute's Acoustical Terminology S1.1-1971 1994 or the most recent 

revision thereof. 

9.16.070100 Measurement Methods. 
  
 (a)A. Any decibel measurement made pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter 

shall be based on a reference sound pressure of twenty (20) micronewtons per square 

meter (0.0002 microbar) as measured with a sound level meter using the "A" weighting, 

and using the slow meter response.  

 (b)B. Unless otherwise provided, outdoor measurements shall be taken with the 

microphone located at any point on the property line of the noise source, but no closer 

than five (5) feet from any wall or vertical obstruction and three (3) to five (5) feet above 

ground level whenever possible.  



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

15 
 

 (c)C. Unless otherwise provided, indoor measurements shall be taken inside the 

structure with the microphone located at any point as follows: (1) no less than three (3) 

feet above floor level; (2) no less than five (5) feet from any wall or vertical obstruction; 

and (3) not under common possession and control with the building or portion of the 

building from which the sound is emanating. 

9.16.110 Enforcement. 
 
 A. PRIMA FACIE VIOLATION. Any noise exceeding the noise level limits in 

Section 9.16.080, or the prohibited actions as provided in Sections 9.16.010, 9.16.020 

and 9.16.030, shall be deemed to be prima facie evidence of a violation of the 

provisions of this Chapter. 

 B. VIOLATIONS. Any violation of the provisions of this Chapter shall be an 

infraction or be subject to administrative code enforcement pursuant to Chapter 1.25 of 

this code.  Each hour such violation is committed or permitted to continue shall 

constitute a separate offense and shall be punishable as such. 

 C. ABATEMENT ORDERS. 

  1. In lieu of issuing a notice of violation as provided for in subsection B of 

this section, the zoning enforcement or police department staff responsible for 

enforcement of any provision of this Chapter may issue an order requiring abatement of 

a sound source alleged to be in violation, within a reasonable time period and according 

to guidelines which the police department may prescribe. 



STAFF DRAFT 03/08/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM STAFF DRAFT 01/26/16 

 
 

16 
 

  2. No complaint or further action shall be taken in the event that the cause 

of the violation has been removed, the condition abated or fully corrected within the time 

period specified in the written notice. 

 D. CONTINUED VIOLATIONS. Once a violation of any provision of this 

Chapter has been verified by a zoning enforcement or police department staff, the 

owner(s) of the property where the violation occurred may be subject to administrative 

action or infraction citation for allowing a subsequent violation of this Chapter to occur 

on the property within nine (9) months after the date of a previous violation, provided the 

property owner has received notification from the City of the previous violation and at 

least fourteen (14) days have passed since the date the notification was mailed to the 

property owner(s). 

9.16.090120 Violations - Additional Remedies - Injunctions. 
  
 As an additional remedy, the operation or maintenance of any sound amplifying 

equipment, device, instrument, vehicle, or machinery in violation of any provision of this 

Chapter, which operation or maintenance causes discomfort or annoyance to 

reasonable persons of normal sensitiveness or which endangers the comfort, repose, 

health or peace of residents in the area, shall be deemed and is declared to be, a public 

nuisance and may be subject to abatement summarily by a restraining order or 

injunction issued by a court of competent jurisdiction. 



Agenda Item No.  11 
 

File Code No.  540.11 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Policy Direction For The Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Study 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council receive a presentation and provide direction on assumptions for the Fiscal 
Year 2017 Water Rate Study, specifically for the planned reserves management during 
continued drought conditions.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On November 24, 2015, Council authorized the Public Works Director to execute a City 
Professional Services contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (Raftelis), in the 
amount of $50,221 for the development of the Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Study 
(Study), and authorized the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to 
$12,555 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 
The Study is being developed in preparation for continued drought conditions. The 
proposed Fiscal Year 2017 water rates will be structured to continue incentivizing 
reduction in customer water use to ensure that planned demand reductions are 
achieved. After the typical rainy season is over this spring, the water supply outlook and 
conservation target will be re-assessed. It is anticipated that the conservation target will 
increase, should dry conditions persist. Water rates are preliminarily being designed 
based on current conservation levels. If the water supply conditions improve, water 
rates can be adjusted accordingly prior to adoption.  
 
Continued drought conditions could result in additional drought related expenses for 
supplemental water purchases, conveyance of State Water through Lake Cachuma, 
and extended full-production operation of the desalination facility. The financial plan is 
being developed with the assumption that these drought related costs will be necessary 
through Fiscal Year 2018. If the water supply condition improves, water rates can be 
adjusted accordingly prior to adoption. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Policy Direction For The Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Study  
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Reserve Management Scenarios 
 
As of June 2015, reserve balances were approximately $17.5 million (including $5 million 
from the Rate Stabilization Fund).  Current projections show no use of reserves in Fiscal 
Year 2016, which is a much better financial outlook than the original adopted Fiscal Year 
2016 budget showing about $6.4 million use of reserves.  The difference is based on 
reduced expenditures in budgeted groundwater projects ($2.7 million) and additional  
revenue from grants/reimbursements ($3.5 million). With these updates, the projected 
reserve balance on June 30, 2016 is $17.3 million.  Under adopted reserve policies, the 
Water Fund Policy reserves should total approximately $18.3 million in Fiscal Year 2016. 
Therefore, reserves are anticipated to be close to policy at the end of Fiscal Year 2016. 
 
Two reserve management scenarios are being proposed for discussion: 
 
Scenario 1 – No Use of Reserves, and Short-Term Reserve Recovery: The first scenario 
assumes no use of any reserves to meet projected expenses for the four-year financial 
period starting in Fiscal Year 2016. This scenario assumes that all projected expenses will 
be met entirely with revenues recovered from water rates, and the water rates would 
generate revenue to restore the reserve balance to policy levels within a one-year period.  
  
Scenario 2 – Some Use of Reserves, and Longer-Term Reserve Recovery: In this 
scenario, reserves are used for one-time drought expenses, and the reserve balance is 
planned to return to policy targets over a three-year period.  
 
Preliminary results show that the projected increase in revenue requirements range 
between 11-22 percent for Fiscal Year 2017, depending on reserve management; 
however, the analysis continues to be refined. 
 
Given the volatility in water demands and supply conditions, staff does not recommend 
water rate planning that assumes a drop of reserves below Council policy. Staff 
recommends the first scenario, in which rate planning is developed with the assumption 
that total reserve funds remain equal to or above Council policy.   
 
Debt Service Coverage Requirements 
 
The Water Fund is the dedicated source of revenue for the Series 2013 Water Revenue 
Refunded Certificates of Participation, the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) Water 
Supply Agreement for costs associated with the State Water Project, two State Revolving 
Fund (“SRF”) loans for the Cater Treatment Plant (2010 and 2002) and, as of Fiscal Year 
2016, the SRF loan for the reactivation of the Desalination Plant.  With the exception of the 
2002 Cater SRF loan which is subordinate debt, all other Water Fund debt are parity debt 
obligations. All of the parity debt obligations contain a covenant which requires that the 
City at all times fix, prescribe and collect rates, fees and changes for the Water Service 
that are reasonably fair and nondiscriminatory and which will be at least sufficient to yield 
net water revenues during each fiscal year equal to 125% of the debt service of that fiscal 
year. The debt coverage ratio is calculated by dividing the net operating revenue by the 



Council Agenda Report 
Policy Direction For The Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Study  
March 8, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 

 

total debt service. For Fiscal Year 2015, the Water Fund debt coverage ratio for parity debt 
obligations was 110% and for the subordinate debt obligation the ratio was 0.76%. The 
debt coverage ratio fell short of the requirement as a result of lower revenues than 
projected (due to lower water usage).  The Fiscal Year 2015 debt coverage ratios will be 
disclosed to the City’s lenders as part of the City’s required continuing disclosures. 
 
For development of Fiscal Year 2016 water rates, and going forward, the rate model 
assumptions were changed to recognize an increased level of customer conservation 
which should offset the revenue reduction.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/KD/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No.  12 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval 
 Of A New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Deny the appeal of Eric and Elenor Wernicke of the Architectural Board of Review’s 

decision to grant Project Design Approval for the proposed new seven-unit 
apartment building; and  

B. Direct Staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the outcome of 
the appeal. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Description 
 
The project site is located in the Oak Park neighborhood and is situated on a 12,656 
square foot lot, with a land use designation of Medium-High Density Residential (15-27 
dwelling units/acre) and a zoning classification of R-4, Hotel-Motel-Multiple Residential 
Zone. The proposal includes the demolition of an existing single-family home, a studio 
apartment, detached garage, and two sheds, and construction of a two-unit, two-story 
duplex and a 5-unit,  two- and three-story residential apartment building under the Average 
Unit-size Density (AUD) Incentive Program. The project will result in seven units 
comprised of 2 two-bedroom units and 5 three-bedroom units, totaling 6,609 square feet. 
The proposed density for the project is 25 dwelling units per acre with an average unit size 
of 944 square feet. Eight uncovered surface parking spaces, including one accessible 
parking space, are provided for the project. The project site plans are included as 
Attachment 1. 
 
Background 
 
The current appeal is the second appeal filed for a project on this site. A different project 
previously approved by the Architectural Board of Review (ABR) was appealed and heard 
by Council in July 2015. At that appeal hearing, Council upheld the appeal and referred 
the project to the Planning Commission to provide comments to the ABR on the following 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval Of A New Seven-Unit 
Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 

 

specific design issues: compatibility of the project with the neighborhood, potential to 
reduce the number of bathrooms per unit, and provide additional parking. After Planning 
Commission review, the project was to return to the ABR for further review and action (see 
Council Minutes, Attachment 2). Rather than further pursue the first project, the applicant 
elected to withdraw the original application and file a new application with a revised 
design. 
 
The ABR reviewed the revised project at a noticed concept hearing on November 9, 2015. 
Staff believes that the ABR was attentive to Council’s direction and considered the original 
basis for concerns regarding the compatibility and appropriateness of the three-story 
project within the neighborhood. At the November 2015 hearing, the ABR determined that 
the revised design was an improvement to the building massing because the parking 
garages were replaced with surface parking and two separate buildings were proposed to 
help reduce the overall length of the building. The provision of uncovered surface parking 
at the center of the site also addresses a previous concern expressed by a neighbor that 
garages might be used for purposes other than car storage. The applicant followed 
Council’s direction to redesign the project by reducing the number of bathrooms from 19 to 
12, improving the parking design configuration, and providing one additional parking 
space. 
 
On January 4, 2016, the ABR reviewed the revised project again and found the design and 
layout to be very successful and an improvement to the previous project. After considering 
public comment, the ABR reviewed the required Project Compatibility Criteria Analysis and 
granted the Project Design Approval on a 4/0/0 vote. The ABR meeting minutes are 
provided as Attachment 3. 
 
The ABR approval was subsequently appealed on January 14, 2016 by Eric and Elenor 
Wernicke, neighbors living on West Pedregosa Street. The appellants were not involved 
with the original appeal. Their stated concerns with the revised project primarily relate to 
potential parking impacts in the neighborhood. The appellants suggest that the project be 
revised to require a minimum of 12 parking spaces, include tandem parking spaces, and 
that parking studies be conducted to determine if additional on-street parking can be 
provided in the area. The appeal letter is provided as Attachment 4. 
 
APPEAL ISSUE - PARKING 
 
The appellants argue that the project will have negative on-street parking impacts due to 
insufficient parking provided for the proposed development. The appellants further assert 
that 8 parking spaces for 19 bedrooms does not meet the actual needs of the 
neighborhood and that the project should provide a minimum of 12 spaces, and include 
tandem parking spaces. Furthermore, the appellants believe the City should conduct 
parking studies to determine if additional on-street parking spaces can be provided in the 
area. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval Of A New Seven-Unit 
Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
March 8, 2016 
Page 3 

 

Parking Requirements: The AUD Program requires a minimum of one parking space 
per residential unit and no guest parking. Adoption of the AUD Program in July 2013 
carried out a key program directed by the 2011 General Plan to facilitate the 
construction of smaller housing units by allowing increased density and development 
standard incentives, including reduced setbacks, open space, and parking 
requirements. 
 
As part of the General Plan Update process, the City Council discussed and 
acknowledged that on-street parking might be impacted in some neighborhoods by the 
reduced parking requirements of the AUD program; however, it was considered a 
tradeoff in order to produce more housing. Council also recently voted not to revisit the 
AUD program until some units in the High Density or Priority Overlay areas are 
constructed and occupied, and directed staff to continue to monitor these AUD 
developments during the initial program period. 
 
While the former variable density program would have required two parking spaces per 
unit, for a total of 14 spaces, and one guest parking space, the current AUD program 
parking standard requires a minimum of seven parking spaces and no guest parking for 
this project. Therefore, the proposed project meets the parking requirement of the 
Municipal Code. 
 
Tandem Parking: The appellants suggest that tandem parking be included in the 
project to increase the number of on-site parking spaces. Transportation staff does not 
support the use of tandem parking for this project because maneuvering tandem-parked 
vehicles is inconvenient and difficult to coordinate between separate households, thus 
rendering it problematic as a parking solution. Also, due to the narrow width of the site, 
it would be difficult to accommodate tandem parking and the necessary maneuvering 
area. 
 
Parking Studies: The appellants request that a parking study be conducted to 
determine if on-street parking supply can be increased by reducing red painted curbs. 
Public Works staff often receives requests such as this and evaluates them based on 
safety considerations (e.g., site distance visibility); however, studies are generally not 
undertaken in direct response to a proposed development project. Council may also 
request that Public Works staff conduct a study to determine if additional on-street 
parking supply can be increased. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff believes the new application and revised project design was properly reviewed and 
carefully considered by the ABR, particularly in light of previous direction from City Council 
on the original project design. Therefore, staff recommends that Council deny the appeal 
and uphold the ABR’s decision to grant Project Design Approval to the new seven-unit 
apartment building and direct staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings 
reflecting the outcome of the appeal. 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval Of A New Seven-Unit 
Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street 
March 8, 2016 
Page 4 

 

NOTE: The project plans were separately delivered to the City Council for review 
and are available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Proposed site plan, floor plans, and elevations 
 2.  City Council Minutes, July 21, 2015 
 3. ABR Minutes, November 9, 2015, January 4, 2016 
 4. Appellants’ letter dated January 14, 2016 

 
PREPARED BY: Irma Unzueta, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1









CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – JULY 21, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
23. Subject: Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Project Design Approval Of A
New Seven-Unit Apartment Building At 1818 Castillo Street (640.07)

Recommendation: That Council 
A. Deny the appeal of Brian Barnwell of the Architectural Board of Review's decision to
grant Project Design Approval for the proposed new seven-unit apartment building; and
B. Direct Staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the outcome of the
appeal.
Documents:
- July 21, 2015, report from the Community Development Director.

(Cont’d)7/21/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 11 

Documents: (Cont’d) 
- July 14, 2015 Letter from Melissa Lolley.
- July 16, 2015 Letter from JoAnn Nasta.
- July 16, 2015 Letter from Marie Schnyer.
- July 16, 2015 Email/Letter from Brian Barnwell.
- July 20, 2015 Letter from Melissa.
- July 20, 2015 Letter from JoAnn Nasta.
- July 21, 2015 Letter from Brian Barnwell.
- July 21, 2015 Letter from Jon Kechejian.
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff.

Public Comment Opened: 
6:06 p.m.  
Speakers:  
- Staff: Associate Planner Suzanne Riegle, Project Planner Irma Unzueta, Supervising
Transportation Planner Steve Foley.
- Architectural Board of Review: Member Amy Tripp.
- Applicant: Randy Douglas, DB Partners, LLC.
- Appellant: Brian Barnwell.
- Members of the Public: Pam Lasker; Rick (last name not stated); Richard Handler; Mark
Edwards; Kay Hoffman; Suzanne Smith; Enid Sterling; Sharon Foster.
Public Comment Closed:
6:20 p.m.
Motion:
Councilmembers White/Francisco to uphold the appeal and refer to Planning Commission
to specifically comment on the compatibility with the neighborhood, reduction of the number
of bathrooms per unit, and additional parking and return to Architectural Board of Review for
further review.
Vote:
Majority voice vote (Noes: Councilmember Murillo).

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 3







ATTACHMENT 4





Agenda Item No.  13 
 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: March 8, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference with City Attorney – Anticipated Litigation 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to decide whether to authorize the initiation of litigation 
(one potential case) pursuant to Government Code sections 54956.9(d)(4) and take 
appropriate action as needed. 
 
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.PDF
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.PDF
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.PDF
	12.DOC
	13.PDF
	14.PDF
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.PDF
	21.PDF
	22.PDF
	23.PDF
	24.DOC
	Mayor
	MARCH 8, 2016
	AGENDA
	03-08-16 Agenda.pdf
	Mayor
	MARCH 8, 2016
	AGENDA
	Blank Page




